
 

DRIPPING SPRINGS RANCH PARK  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

City of Dripping Springs  

Ranch Park Event Center, 1042 Event Center Drive  

Wednesday, March 01, 2023 at 11:00 AM  

Agenda 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Board Members 

Todd Purcell, Chair 

Terry Polk, Vice Chair 

Pam Owens, Secretary 

Penny Reeves 

Mike Carroll 

Staff, Consultants & Appointed/Elected Officials 
Parks & Community Services Director Andy Binz 

DSRP Manager Emily Nelson 

DSRP Assistant Manger Lily Sellars 

DSRP Events Coordinator Caylie Houchin 

City Treasurer Shawn Cox 

Emergency Management Coordinator Roman Baligad 

Deputy Public Works Director Craig Rice 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Board regarding any item on an agenda for an open 

meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during the 

Board's consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained within the current 

agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are allowed two 

(2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers may not cede 

or pool time. Members of the public requiring assistance of a translator will be given twice the amount of 

time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to address the Board. 

It is the request of the Board that members of the public wishing to speak on item(s) on the agenda with a 

noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented for consideration. Speaker 

are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City's policy on presentation of citizens for 

the City Secretary. By law no action may be taken during Presentation of Citizens. 

MINUTES 

1. Discuss and consider approval of the January 4, 2023, DSRP Board regular meeting 

minutes. 

 

 

1



BUSINESS 

2. Presentation and possible action regarding the DSRP Board Fiscal Year 2024 Budget 

recommendation. 

3. Discuss and consider possible action regarding the Expansion Paving Project and 

Temporary Arena. 

4. Discuss and consider approval of a Co-Sponsorship with Dripping Springs Helping 

Hands regarding Banner Display for the Texas Market Guide Wildflower Spring 

Market. 

5. Discuss and consider recommendation regarding a Co-Sponsorship Agreement with 

Dripping Springs Ag Boosters for the 2023 Rodeo. 

6. Discuss and consider recommendation regarding a Co-Sponsorship Agreement with 

Texas Hill Country Barrel Racing Association. 

REPORTS 

The following reports relate to the administration of the Dripping Springs Ranch Park Event Center. 

The Board may provide staff direction; however, no action may be taken. 

7. Ice Storm Mara Emergency Management Report 
Roman Baligad, Emergency Management Coordinator 

8. January | February 2023 DSRP Manager Report 
Emily Nelson, DSRP Manager 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Dripping Springs Ranch Park Board of Directors for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to 

adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any matter as 

authorized by Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 

(Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073  (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 

(Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic 

Development). The Dripping Springs Ranch Park Board of Directors for the City of Dripping Springs may 

act on any item listed in Executive Session in Open Session or move any item from Executive Session to 

Open Session for action.  

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

DSRP Board Meetings 
April 5, 2023, at 11:00 a.m. 

May 3, 2023, at 11:00 a.m. 

June 7, 2023, at 11:00 a.m. 

City Council Meetings 
March 7, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 

March 21, 2023, at 6:00 p.m.  

2



April 4, 2023, at 6:00 p.m.  

April 18, 2023, at 6:00 p.m.  

ADJOURN 

TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT PUBLIC NOTIFICATION & POSTING OF MEETING 

All agenda items listed above are eligible for discussion and action unless otherwise specifically 

noted.  This notice of meeting is posted in accordance with Chapter 551, Government Code, Vernon's 

Texas Codes Annotated. In addition, the Board may consider a vote to excuse the absence of any Board 

Member for absence from this meeting. 

I certify that this notice of meeting was posted at the City of Dripping Springs City Hall and website, 

www.cityofdrippingpsrings.com, on February 24, 2023, at 12:30 p.m. 

 

 
City Secretary 

 

This facility is wheelchair accessible. Accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for auxiliary aids and 

services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting by calling (512) 858-4725. 

3



 

DSRP Board of Directors  January 4, 2023 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 3 

 

DRIPPING SPRINGS RANCH PARK 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

City of Dripping Springs 

Banquet Hall, 1042 Event Center Drive 

Wednesday, January 04, 2023 at 11:00 AM 

MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

With a quorum of the Board present, Chair Purcell called the meeting to order at 11:05 a.m. 

Board Members present were: 

Todd Purcell, Chair 

Terry Polk, Vice Chair 

Pam Owens, Secretary 

Mike Carroll 

Penny Reeves 

Staff, Consultants & Appointed/Elected Officials present were: 
DSRP Manager Emily Nelson 

DSRP Assistant Manager Lily Sellers 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Board regarding any item on an agenda for an open 

meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during the 

Board's consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained within the current 

agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are allowed two 

(2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers may not cede 

or pool time. Members of the public requiring assistance of a translator will be given twice the amount of 

time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to address the Board. 

It is the request of the Board that members of the public wishing to speak on item(s) on the agenda with a 

noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented for consideration. Speaker 

are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City's policy on presentation of citizens for 

the City Secretary. By low no action may be taken during Presentation of Citizens. 

 

No one spoke during Presentation of Citizens. 

MINUTES 

1. Discuss and consider approval of the July 6, 2022, DSRP Board regular meeting minutes. 

A motion was made by Board Member Reeves to approve the July 6, 2022, DSRP Board regular 

meeting minutes. Vice Chair Polk seconded the motion which carried unanimously 5 to 0. 

 

4

Item 1.



 

DSRP Board of Directors  January 4, 2023 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 3 

2. Discuss and consider approval of the September 7, 2022, DSRP Board regular meeting 

minutes. 

 

A motion was made by Board Member Reeves to approve the September 7, 2022, DSRP Board 

regular meeting minutes. Vice Chair Polk seconded the motion which carried unanimously 5 to 0. 

BUSINESS 

3. Discuss and consider approval of the 2023 DSRP Board  meeting calendar. 

 

Andrea Cunningham’s staff report is on file. Staff recommends approval of the calendar. 

 

A motion was made by Board Member Reeves to approve the 2023 DSRP Board  meeting 

calendar. Vice Chair Polk seconded the motion which carried unanimously 5 to 0. 

 

4. Discuss and consider recommendation regarding a Co-Sponsorship Agreement with Dripping 

Springs Ag Boosters. 
 

Emily Nelson presented the staff report which is on file. Staff recommends approval of the agreement. 

 

A motion was made by Board Member Reeves to recommend City Council approval of a Co-

Sponsorship Agreement with Dripping Springs Ag Boosters. Board Member Carroll seconded the 

motion which carried unanimously 5 to 0. 
 

5. Discuss and consider recommendation regarding a Rate Reduction Request from the 

Dripping Springs United Methodist Church for the Dripping Springs Wild Game Dinner. 

 

Emily Nelson presented the staff report which is on file. Staff recommends denial of the request 

for additional rate reduction. 

 

A motion was made by Board Member Carroll to recommend City Council deny an additional rate 

reduction request from the Dripping Springs United Methodist Church for the Dripping Springs 

Wild Game Dinner. Board Member Reeves seconded the motion which carried unanimously 5 to 

0. 

REPORTS 

The following reports relate to the planning and administration of the Dripping Springs Ranch Park & 

Event Center. The board may provide staff direction; however, no action may be taken. 

6. DSRP Monthly Managers Report, October - December 2022 
Emily Nelson, DSRP Manager 

Report is on file and available for review upon request. 

7. DSRP Programs Monthly Report 
Caylie Houchin, DSRP Program Coordinator 

 

No report at this time. 

 

5

Item 1.



 

DSRP Board of Directors  January 4, 2023 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 3 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Dripping Springs Ranch Park Board of Directors for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to 

adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any matter as 

authorized by Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 

(Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073  (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 

(Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic 

Development). The Dripping Springs Ranch Park Board of Directors for the City of Dripping Springs may 

act on any item listed in Executive Session in Open Session or move any item from Executive Session to 

Open Session for action.  

 

The Board did not meet in Executive Session. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

DSRP Board Meetings 
2023 Meetings TBD 

 

City Council Meetings 
December 6, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

December 20, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

January 3, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 

January 17, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 

ADJOURN 

Via unanimous consent, the Board adjourned this regular meeting at 11:50 a.m. 

 

 

6

Item 1.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City of Dripping Springs 

FY 2024 Tax Rate & Budget Adoption 

Important Dates & Deadlines 
Approved by Council: Tuesday, February 7, 2023 

 

7

Item 2.



2 | P a g e  
 

The attached Budget Calendar outlines the statutory dates and planning activities for City Staff, Boards, 

Commissions, Committees and City Council as they relate to the Budget Process for Fiscal Year 2024.  Calendar 

activities in RED note deadlines for staff & City Council, and Public Notifications.  The Finance Director will 

coordinate with City Administration, the City Attorney and City Secretary regarding all notices, ordinances and 

resolutions as adopted, to include filing the proper documents with County and State Entities.  The City Council 

will hold the following meetings regarding the Tax Rate and Budget Adoption:  

• June 06, 2023: Budget Workshop 

• June 20, 2023: Budget Workshop 

• July 05, 2023: Budget Workshop 

• July 18, 2023: Budget Workshop  

• August 01, 2023: Budget Workshop 

• August 15, 2023: Budget Workshop, Set Proposed Tax Rate, and Discussion 

• September 05, 2023: Budget Workshop, Public Hearings on Tax Rate and Budget, and Possible Adoption 

of the Budget* 

• September 19, 2023: Adoption of Approved Budget and Tax Rate, and Ratification of Tax Rate** 

*The Council may choose to either adopt the budget or postpone adoption to the following meeting on September 19, 

2023.   

**If the total property tax revenue is raised, the Council will need to Ratify the Tax Rate with a resolution. 

All other calendar dates are related to the budget planning process for City staff to include recommendations 

from boards, commissions, and committees.  Budget process activities are listed below each calendar for 

reference.  The following boards, commissions and committees will submit budget recommendations: 

• DSRP Board of Directors 

• Economic Development Committee 

• Emergency Management Commission 

• Farmers Market Committee 

• Founders Day Commission 

• Historic Preservation Commission 

• Parks & Recreation Commission 

• TIRZ No. 1 & No. 2 Board 

• Transportation Committee 

The Finance Director will provide staff with the proper forms and budget planning materials related to 

individual requests and department requests.  Staff will work with their supervisor and the Finance Director to 

draft and submit their requests, and Staff Liaisons to Boards, Commissions and Committees will hold meetings 

to discuss and provide recommendations for requests.  The City Secretary will make sure that each meeting 

following approval of the Budget Calendar has a budget review/recommendation added to the 

abovementioned board and commission agendas.  The City Secretary does not draft committee agendas but is 

available to staff for assistance.  Please make sure you attach, or forward for attachment documents for 

agenda discussion items.

8

Item 2.



3 | P a g e  
 

    City of Dripping Springs 

FY 2024 Tax Rate & Budget Adoption 

Important Dates & Deadlines 

 

February 7, 2023 
City Council Approval of Budget Calendar and Presentation on Legislative Changes 
to the Budget Process 

April 14, 2023 
City Staff Department Budget Requests Due (includes individual staff member 
requests submitted to supervisors and IT related requests) 

May 5, 2023 
Board, Commission and Committee Budget Recommendations Due; City Staff 
Employee Pay Recommendations Due from Department Heads 

June 6, 2023 City Council Budget Workshop 

June 20, 2023 City Council Budget Workshop 

July 5, 2023 City Council Budget Workshop 

July 18, 2023 City Council Budget Workshop 

August 1, 2023 City Council Budget Workshop 

August 4, 2023 Finance Director files Proposed Budget with City Secretary 

August 15, 2023 City Council Budget Workshop, Set Proposed Tax Rate, and Discussion 

August 24, 2023 
Publication of Notice of Proposed Tax Rate, and Tax Rate and Budget Public Hearings 
(Submit for publication August 18, 2023) 

 
Begin Continuous Notice of Proposed Tax Rate on City Website with Public Hearing 
Dates for Budget and Tax Rate Hearing, and Notice of Tax Rate 

September 5, 2023 
City Council Budget Workshop – Public Hearings on Tax Rate and Budget (Must take 
action to either adopt or postpone adoption of the Budget to the September 19, 2023 
City Council meeting) 

September 19, 2023 
City Council Meeting – Adoption of Budget, Ratification of the Tax Rate (if total 
property tax revenue is raised) and Adoption of the Tax Rate 

September 20, 2023 
Publication of Tax Rate and Budget on City Website, File Tax Rate and Budget with 
County and State Entities 

September 28, 2023 
Publication of Notice of Approved Tax Rate and Budget (Submit for publication on 
September 21, 2023) 

 

9

Item 2.



4 | P a g e  
 

Budget Activities 
• Finance Director provides necessary budget information and request forms to develop individual and 

department budget requests. 

• Staff begins meeting with boards, commissions, committees, and council members to discuss budget 

recommendations and form budget planning committees, if that is usual practice. 

• Staff department heads review IT related software and equipment requests with City Administrator & 

Finance Director and determine any additional costs related to infrastructure.  Requests due to City 

Administrator & Finance Director by February 24th. 

 

**Dates may vary according to progress 

February 2023 
MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY 

  1 2 3 

   
Historic Preservation 
Commission Budget 

Discussion 

**Staff obtain 
proper budget 

request forms from 
Finance Director 

6 7 8 9 10 

Parks & Recreation 
Commission Budget 

Discussion 

CC Meeting: 
Budget 

Presentation & 
Budget Calendar 

Approval 

   

13 14 15 16 17 

TIRZ Board Budget 
Discussion 

 

Founders Day 
Commission Budget 

Discussion 

  

Farmers Market 
Committee 
Discussion 

 

Emergency 
Management 

Commission Budget 
Discussion 

 

20 21 22 23 24 

  

Economic 
Development 

Committee Budget 
Discussion 

 

Departmental IT 
budget requests 

due to City 
Administrator 

27 28    

Transportation 
Committee Budget 

Discussion 
    

10

Item 2.



5 | P a g e  
 

Budget Activities 
• Staff continues meeting with boards, commissions, committees, and council members to discuss budget 

recommendations and form budget planning committees, if that is usual practice. 

• Staff reviews draft budget requests with supervisors and Finance Director. 

• HOT Grant Applications become available. 
 

March 2023 
MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY 

  1 2 3 

 

 

DSRP Board 
Budget Discussion 

 
 
 

Historic Preservation 
Commission Budget 

Discussion 
 
 

HOT Grant 
Application Available 

 
 
 

6 7 
 

8 
9 10 

Parks & Recreation 
Commission Budget 

Discussion 
 
 

 

   

13 14 15 16 17 

TIRZ Board Budget 
Discussion 

 

Founders Day 
Commission Budget 

Discussion 

  
Farmers Market 

Committee Budget 
Discussion 

 

20 21 22 23 24 

  

Economic 
Development 

Committee Budget 
Discussion 

Emergency 
Management 

Commission Budget 
Discussion 

 

27 28 29 30 31 

Transportation 
Committee Budget 

Discussion 
    

 Staff review draft budget requests with supervisors and Finance Director 
 

 Staff review draft budget requests with supervisors and Finance Director 
 

11

Item 2.



6 | P a g e  
 

Budget Activities 
• City Staff continues meeting with boards, commissions, committees, and council members to review and 

approve budget requests and recommendations. 

• City Staff continues developing individual and department budget requests and updates them with feedback 

provided by City Administrators and Finance Director.  Due by April 21st. 

• City Administrator & Finance Director work with vendors and staff on options and costs for IT related 

expenses. 

April 2023 
MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY 

3 4 5 6 7 

Parks & Recreation 
Commission Budget 

Discussion 
 

DSRP Board 
Budget Discussion 

Historic Preservation 
Commission Budget 

Discussion 
 

10 11 12 13 14 

TIRZ Board Budget 
Approve 

Recommendation 
 

Founders Day 
Commission   Budget 

Discussion 

    

17 18 19 20 21 

   

Farmers Market 
Committee Approve 

Recommendation 
 

Emergency 
Management 

Commission Approve 
Recommendation 

City Staff 
Department 

Budget Requests 
Due 

(Includes individual 
staff requests) 

24 25 26 27 28 

Transportation 
Committee Approve 

Recommendation 
 
 

 

Economic 
Development 

Committee Approve 
Recommendation 

 

  

     

     

 City Administration Budget Development 
 

12

Item 2.



7 | P a g e  
 

Budget Activities 

• All board, commission, committee, and council member recommendations due to Finance Director by May 

6th, except for the Founders Day Commission Recommendation, which is due May 8th. 

• City Administrators and Finance Director draft proposed budget and review with staff and council members 

as necessary. 

• City Administrators and Finance Director begin budget review with the Mayor. 

 

 

May 2023 
MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY 

1 2 3 4 5 

Parks & Recreation 
Commission Approve 

Recommendation 
 

DSRP Board 
Approve 

Recommendation 

Historic Preservation 
Commission Approve 

Recommendation 

Board, Commission, 
Committee, & 

Council Member 
Budget 

Recommendations 
Due 

8 9 10 11 12 

Founders Day 
Commission Approve 

Recommendation 
 
 

    

15 16 17 18 19 

 

 

   

22 23 24 25 26 

  
 

  

29 30 31   

 
    

 City Administration Budget Development 
 

 City Administration Budget Development 
 

 City Administration Budget Development 
 

 Budget Review w/Mayor 

 Budget Review w/Mayor 

13

Item 2.



8 | P a g e  
 

Budget Activities 
• City Administrators & Finance Director continue discussion with Mayor to finalize budget for filing. 

• City Council holds 1st budget workshop to review and discuss proposed budget on June 6th. 

o Review of Budget Process - Presentation of Draft Budget to be Filed – Review of Assumptions 

• City Council holds 2nd budget workshop to review and discuss proposed budget on June 20th. 

o Review of General, Agriculture, Landscaping, Sidewalk, & PEG Funds  

June 2023 
MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY 

   1 2 

   
 HOT Grant Program 

Recommendation 
Due 

5 6 7 8 9 

 
CC Meeting: 

Budget Workshop 
   

12 13 14 15 16 

     

19 20 21 22 23 

 
CC Meeting: 

Budget Workshop 
   

26 27 28 29 30 

     

 Budget Review w/Mayor 

14

Item 2.



9 | P a g e  
 

Budget Activities 
• City Staff continues to meet with council members assigned to discuss recommendations. 

• City Council holds 3rd Budget Workshop on July 5th. 

o Review of Wastewater, Utilities, Impact Fees, & TWDB Project 

• City Council holds 4th Budget Workshop on July 18th. 

o Review of Parks (General Fund), DSRP, Parkland Dedication, Parkland Development, & HOT 

July 2023 
MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY 

3 4 5 6 7 

  
CC Meeting: 

Budget Workshop 
  

10 11 12 13 14 

     

17 18 19 20 21 

 
CC Meeting: 

Budget Workshop 
   

24 25 26 27 28 

   •   

31     

     

15

Item 2.



10 | P a g e  
 

Budget Activities 
• City Staff continues to meet with council members assigned to discuss recommendations. 

• City Council holds 5th Budget Workshop on August 1st. 

o Review of Parks (General Fund), DSRP, Parkland Dedication, Parkland Development, & HOT  

• Finance Director files proposed budget with City Secretary. 

• City Secretary posts proposed budget on city website and copy given to Receptionist for public review. 

• City Council holds 6th Budget Workshop on August 15th. 

• City Council Sets Proposed Tax Rate on August 15th. 

• City Secretary submits notice to Century News and Hays Free Press regarding Public Hearing dates for 

proposed Tax Rate and Budget on August 17th for publication on August 24th. 

• City Secretary begins continuous notification of public hearings on City website on August 24th. 

August 2023 
MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY 

 1 2 3 4 

 
CC Meeting: 

Budget Workshop 
  

File Proposed Budget 
with City Secretary 

and Post on Website 

7 8 9 10 11 

     

14 15 16 17 18 

 

CC Meeting: 
Budget Workshop 

 
Set Proposed Tax 

Rate 

•    

21 22 23 24 25 

   

Publication of 
Proposed Tax Rate & 

Budget Public 
Hearings 

Begin Continuous 
Notice on City 

website 

 

28 29 30 31  

     

16

Item 2.



11 | P a g e  
 

Budget Activities 
• City Council holds 7th Budget Workshop on September 5th. 

• City Council holds Public Hearings for proposed Tax Rate and Budget on September 5th.  

• City Council adopts Budget and Tax Rate on September 19th.  

• Finance Director prepares Approved Budget for Fiscal Year 2024 with prescribed cover page. 

• City Secretary submits notice to Century News and Hays Free Press regarding Approved Tax Rate and Budget 

on September 21st  for publication on September 28th.  

• City Secretary files Approved Tax Rate and Budget with Hays County and State Entities. 

September 2023 
MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY 

   1 2 

     

4 5 6 7 8 

 

CC Meeting: 
Budget Workshop 

 
Public Hearing on 
Tax Rate & Budget 

   

11 12 13 14 15 

  •    

18 19 20 21 22 

 

CC Meeting: 
2nd Public Hearing on 

Tax Rate & Budget 
 

Budget Adoption 
 

Tax Rate Ratification 
& Adoption 

Publication of Tax 
Rate & Budget on 

City website 
 

File Tax Rate & 
Budget with County 

and State Entities 

  

25 26 27 28 29 

   

Publication of 
Notice of 

Approved Tax Rate 
& Budget 

 

17

Item 2.



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

City of Dripping Springs 

PO Box 384 

511 Mercer Street 

Dripping Springs, TX 78602 

Submitted By: Emily Nelson, Dripping Springs Ranch Park Manager 

DSRP Board 

Meeting Date: 

March 1, 2023 

Agenda Item Wording: Discuss and consider possible action regarding the Expansion Paving Project 

and Temporary Arena. 

Agenda Item Requestor: Emily Nelson 

Summary/Background:  The Livestock Arena (expansion) has brought some challenges and staff 

have been troubleshooting different options. The arena is too small for 

horse events. Dog Agility shows stopped booking because of the excess 

shavings in the dirt. Staff are unable to remove shavings from the footing 

which has compromised the integrity.  

HCLE approached staff willing to put pavement down. This option would 

assist staff in the cleaning process and hopefully open that space to new 

types of rentals.  

We could shift that footing into a temporary arena located in the field near 

the dirt piles. It would be a simple arena that would be similar to the 

outdoor arena located at Williamson County’s arena. It is a simple panel 

arena with a 4-6” base built with wood to hold the footing in. Some of the 

footing would come from the Livestock Arena and some will come from 

the footing removed during the footing maintenance project in February. 

We would need to spend approximately $6000.00 for the panels, wood for 

a footing base, and then get an estimate on granite sand to finish out the 

footing needed. 

No new equipment would be needed to drag the arena. We could include it 

as a rental add-on for horse shows and increase the size of our riding series 

with the additional space. It would be a temporary arena that we could 

develop further when and if needed. Out lower arena is too far from the 

main arena, and it flood with the lightest of rains. The temporary arena 

would be out of the flood plain. 

I would like to get direction from the DSRP Board before finalizing plans 

and taking steps forward. 

18

Item 3.



Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends HCLE paving the expansion per Chad Gilpin’s (CODS 

City Engineer) guidelines. The addition of a temporary arena will allow for 

horse shows to have 2 arenas to be utilized for horse shows which can 

expand their shows and our Riding Series. 

 

Next Steps/Schedule: Complete a scope with the guidance of the DSRP Board. 

 

19

Item 3.



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

City of Dripping Springs 

PO Box 384 

511 Mercer Street 

Dripping Springs, TX 78602 

Submitted By: Emily Nelson, Dripping Springs Ranch Park Manager 

DSRP Board 

Meeting Date: 

March 1, 2023 

Agenda Item Wording: Discuss and consider a Texas Market Guide Banner Co-Sponsorship with 

Dripping Springs Helping Hands 

Agenda Item 

Requestor: 

Nancy Shelton  

Summary/Background:   Texas Market Guide would like to request a Banner Co-Sponsorship with 

Helping Hands that will be hung at the Triangle before their show to be held at 

Dripping Springs Ranch Park. 

 

Staff 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends approval of the co-sponsored banner to be hung at the 

Triangle. 

Attachments: 2023 Texas Market Guide Co-Sponsorship Agreement  

Next Steps/Schedule:  

 

20

Item 4.



P a g e  | 1 

City of Dripping Springs 
Co-Sponsorship Agreement 

 Email:  

Co-Sponsor Name:  

Organization: 

Address:  

Phone Number:  

Event Description/Purpose: 

Event Date:  Event Location: 

THIS CO-SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT IS SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

• Parties. The City of Dripping Springs, Texas (“City”) and Co-Sponsor, as indicated above.
• Agreement. The agreement documents shall consist of the Co-Sponsorship Agreement, Policy and Application form

("Attachment "A").
• Scope. This Agreement applies to Co-Sponsor’s utilization of the City’s property for the Event and reasons stated

above.
• Obligations of the City. The extent of the City’s obligations under this Agreement is that the City agrees to display a

banner for the Event at city facilities and parks, post the Event on the City’s website calendar and City social media
sites, and adhere to all obligations described in Attachment "A".

• Obligations of Co-Sponsor. Co-Sponsor agrees to oversee the organization and execution of the Event and agrees to
keep the City informed of plans for the Event as described in Attachment "A". Co-Sponsor agrees to provide all
volunteer labor needed to operate and oversee all aspects of the Event. Co-Sponsor will put City logo on event banners.

• Independent Contractor. The Parties agree that Co-Sponsor is an independent contractor and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the City. Co-Sponsor is solely responsible for directing and controlling Co-Sponsor’s resources and staff in
order to achieve the goals of this Agreement.

• Safety. Co-Sponsor agrees to abide by all state, federal, and local rules and regulations. Co-Sponsor agrees to take all
reasonable steps to ensure public safety and protection from fire damage. Participants in the Event shall obtain itinerant
vendor licenses, temporary food establishment permits, and mobile food unit permits, as applicable.

• Site Maintenance. Co-Sponsor agrees not to waste or damage City property and  right-of-way. In addition, Co-Sponsor
shall exercise reasonable care and due diligence to avoid harming City property and rights-of-way. Co-Sponsor shall
ensure that all trash is placed in the City-provided trash cans.

• Duration. This Agreement shall be enforceable when signed by both parties and shall be deemed terminated when all
duties and obligations created herein are fully satisfied.

CLEAR

Helping Hands

Crystal Emmons

21

Item 4.



P a g e  | 2 

• Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by mutual consent of the parties. It may be terminated by either party
without prejudice upon written notice to the other party via certified mail, return receipt requested, thirty (30) days
prior to the Event. Termination shall release each party from all obligations of this Agreement, except termination of
this agreement shall not prohibit or impair a claim by either party based upon any breach of this Agreement.

• Force Majure. In situations in which Co-Sponsor’s participation in the Event is delayed, cancelled or suspended due to
the Acts of God, severe weather, natural disaster, state of public emergency, or strike, the terms of this Agreement are
waived.

• INDEMNIFICATION. CO-SPONSOR AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS THE CITY AND ITS
AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS, DAMAGES, LOSSES, AND EXPENSES,
INCLUDING ATTORNEY’S FEES, ARISING OUT OF OR RESULTING FROM THE CITY’S ASSOCIATION
WITH CO-SPONSOR UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, PROVIDED THAT ANY SUCH CLAIMS, DAMAGE, LOSS,
OR EXPENSE IS/ARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BODILY INJURY, SICKNESS, DISEASE OR DEATH, INJURY TO
OR DESTRUCTION OF TANGIBLE PROPERTY, INCLUDING THE LOSS OF USE RESULTING THEREFROM,
AND IS/ARE CAUSED BY ANY NEGLIGENT OR WILLFUL ACT OR OMISSION OF CO-SPONSOR, AND
ANYONE ACTING UNDER THE DIRECT EMPLOYMENT OF THE CO-SPONSOR.

• Notice. Any notice provided for by this Agreement and any other notice, demand or communication which either party
may wish to send to the other, shall be in writing and given by registered or certified United States mail, return receipt
requested. Notices shall be addressed to the party for whom such notice, demand or communication is intended. Mail
notice to the City as: Attention: City Administrator, Post Office Box 384, Dripping Springs, Texas 78620.

• Assignment. Neither party shall assign any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement without prior written
consent of the other party. Nothing herein shall be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other
than the City and Co-Sponsor.

• Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement, or portion thereof, shall be found to be invalid or
unenforceable, then, such provision or portion thereof shall be reformed in accordance with applicable laws. The
invalidity or unenforceability of any provision or portion of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision or portion thereof within this Agreement.

• Modifications. All amendments or modifications to the Agreement must be in writing. No amendment or modification
shall be effective until it is in writing and approved by both parties.

• Merger. This instrument, and any Attachments affixed hereto, constitutes the entire Agreement between the City and
Co-Sponsor. To the extent there are any conflicts between this Agreement and the attachments, this Agreement shall
govern. This Agreement supersedes all other agreements, oral or written.

• Venue for Disputes. In the event that a lawsuit is brought concerning events arising out of this Agreement, the venue
for such action is Hays County, Texas. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Texas.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT: 

Owner: 
City of Dripping Springs, Texas 

___________________________________ 

___________________________________ 
Date   

Co-Sponsor: 

___________________________________ 

___________________________________ 
Date 

Andrew Binz, Parks & Community Services Director

SUBMIT

Helping Hands

Crystal Emmons

22

Item 4.



23

Item 4.



24

Item 4.



25

Item 4.



26

Item 4.



27

Item 4.



28

Item 4.



29

Item 4.



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

City of Dripping Springs 

PO Box 384 

511 Mercer Street 

Dripping Springs, TX 78602 

Submitted By: Emily Nelson, Dripping Springs Ranch Park Manager 

DSRP Board 

Meeting Date: 

March 1, 2023 

Agenda Item Wording: Discuss and consider a Co-Sponsorship Agreement with Dripping Springs 

Ag Boosters for the 2023 Rodeo. 

Agenda Item Requestor: Emily Nelson and Stephanie Kirkey  

Summary/Background:  Dripping Springs Ag Boosters would like to create a Co-Sponsorship for 

the 2023 Rodeo occurring May 26-28, 2023. We will model the agreement 

from the 2022 Rodeo Co-Sponsorship. 

 

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends a Co-Sponsorship with Dripping Springs Ag Boosters 

for Rodeo 2023 with the agreement that DSRP staff will assist in social 

media advertising and oversee all ticket sales. 

 

Board Recommendation: 

 

Attachments: 

  

 

2023 Rodeo Co-Sponsorship Agreement 

Next Steps/Schedule: City Council Contract Execution 

 

30

Item 5.



City of Dripping Springs   

Copyright/Co-Sponsorship Agreement:  Page 1 of 5 

DRIPPING SPRINGS RANCH PARK DRIPPING SPRINGS FAIR & RODEO  

LOGO USE AND CO-SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT 

 

THIS CONTRACT made this the ___ day of _________ 2023, by and between Dripping 

Springs Ag Boosters. hereinafter called the “User”, and the City of Dripping Springs, hereinafter 

called the “Owner.” acting herein by its City Administrator, Michelle Fischer hereunto duly 

authorized. 

 

WITNESSETH, that the User and the Owner for the considerations stated herein mutually agree 

as follows: 

 

1. Owner owns all proprietary rights in and to the copyrightable and/or copyrighted works 

described in this Agreement.  The copyrighted works will collectively be referred to as the 

“Property”.  

 

2. Owner owns all rights in and to the Property and retains all rights to the Property, which 

are not transferred herein, and retains all common law copyrights and all federal copyrights 

which have been, or which may be, granted.  

 

3. User desires to obtain, and Owner has agreed to grant, a license authorizing the use of the 

Property by User in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  

The parties agree to abide by the terms as follows:  

A. CONTRACT COMPONENTS.  The executed contract documents shall consist of the 

following components: 

 

1. This Contract; 

2. Exhibit “A” Property/Logo 

3. Exhibit “B” Co-Sponsorship Application 

4. Exhibit “C” Event Center Rental Contract 

This Contract, together with other documents enumerated here, which said other documents are as 

fully a part of the Contract as if hereto attached or herein repeated, forms the Contract between the 

parties hereto. In the event that any provision of an Exhibit conflicts with a provision in this 

Contract, the provisions in this Contract prevails. 

 

B. GRANT OF LICENSE. Owner owns the Dripping Springs Fair & Rodeo Logo 

“Property”. Owner grants User a non-exclusive license to use the Property in all marketing 

materials related to the 2023 Dripping Springs Fair & Rodeo including digital marketing.  The 

license to use the Property terminates on December 31, 2023 unless extended in writing by the 

Owner.  User may use the Property for apparel or other merchandise, but must cease sale and 

distribution of the merchandise upon expiration or termination of this Agreement.  Owner retains 

title and ownership of the Property. User will own all rights to materials, products, and work 

created by User “Work” in connection with this license.  The license is only valid while the 

31

Item 5.



City of Dripping Springs   

Copyright/Co-Sponsorship Agreement:  Page 2 of 5 

Dripping Springs Fair & Rodeo is located at the Dripping Springs Ranch Park and is the subject 

of a Dripping Springs Ranch Park and Event Center Rental Contract.  The User will also list the 

City of Dripping Springs as the main sponsor for the Dripping Springs Fair & Rodeo in all 

marketing materials.  

 

C. CO-SPONSORSHIP.  User shall have use of the Dripping Springs Ranch Park and 

Event Center for the Dripping Springs Fair & Rodeo from 5/26/23-5/29/23 based on the Event 

Center Contract attached as Exhibit “C” at the cost of the greater of seven thousand nine hundred 

dollars ($7900) for the Full Facility Rental or 1/3 of the profits generated from the event, but 

shall not include the cost of other fees including, but not limited to, staff time or equipment 

rentals.  The User will also list the City of Dripping Springs as the main sponsor for the Dripping 

Springs Fair & Rodeo in all marketing materials.  

 

D. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS.  User shall be the sole owner of the Work and all 

proprietary rights in and to the Work; however, such ownership shall not include ownership of the 

copyright in and to the Property or any other rights to the Property not specifically granted in this 

Agreement.   

 

E. MODIFICATIONS. Unless the prior written approval of Owner is obtained, User may 

not modify or change the Property in any manner. User shall not use the Property for any purpose 

that is unlawful or prohibited by these Terms of the Agreement. 

 

F. DEFAULTS ON AGREEMENT. If User fails to abide by the obligations of this 

Agreement or its Event Center Rental Contract, including the obligation to publicize the City as 

the main sponsor of the event, Owner shall have the option to cancel this Agreement by providing 

30 days written notice to User. User shall have the option of taking corrective action to cure the 

default to prevent the termination of this Agreement if said corrective action is enacted prior to the 

end of the time period stated in the previous sentence. There must be no other defaults during such 

time period or Owner will have the option to cancel this Agreement, despite previous corrective 

action.  

 

G. WARRANTIES. Neither party makes any warranties with respect to the use, sale, or other 

transfer of the Property by the other party or by any third party, and User accepts the product “AS 

IS.” In no event will Owner be liable for direct, indirect, special, incidental, or consequential 

damages, that are in any way related to the Property.  

 

H. TRANSFER OF RIGHTS. Neither party shall have the right to assign its interests in this 

Agreement to any other party unless the prior written consent of the other party is obtained.  

 

I. INDEMNIFICATION. EACH PARTY SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE 

OTHER HARMLESS FOR ANY LOSSES, CLAIMS, DAMAGES, AWARDS, PENALTIES, 

OR INJURIES INCURRED BY ANY THIRD PARTY, INCLUDING REASONABLE 

ATTORNEY’S FEES, WHICH ARISE FROM ANY ALLEGED BREACH OF SUCH 

32

Item 5.



City of Dripping Springs   

Copyright/Co-Sponsorship Agreement:  Page 3 of 5 

INDEMNIFYING PARTY’S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES MADE UNDER 

THIS AGREEMENT, PROVIDED THAT THE INDEMNIFYING PARTY IS PROMPTLY 

NOTIFIED OF ANY SUCH CLAIMS. THE INDEMNIFYING PARTY SHALL HAVE THE 

SOLE RIGHT TO DEFEND SUCH CLAIMS AT ITS OWN EXPENSE. THE OTHER PARTY 

SHALL PROVIDE, AT THE INDEMNIFYING PARTY’S EXPENSE, SUCH ASSISTANCE IN 

INVESTIGATING AND DEFENDING SUCH CLAIMS AS THE INDEMNIFYING PARTY 

MAY REASONABLY REQUEST. THIS INDEMNITY WILL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION 

OF THIS AGREEMENT.  

 

J. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be modified or amended, only if the amendment is 

made in writing and is signed by both parties.  

 

K. DURATION. This Contract shall be in effect until December 31, 2023, unless terminated 

as provided below or extended in writing.  

 

L. TERMINATION. This Agreement shall terminate automatically on Termination Date.  

Either party may terminate this Agreement if the other party breaches this Agreement or the Event 

Center Rental Agreement.  Prior to termination, the complaining party shall provide the other party 

ten (10) business days to cure any breach unless such cure is non-feasible.    

 

1. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, Licensee User shall cease reproducing, 

advertising, marketing, and distributing the Work including merchandise as soon as is 

commercially feasible. Licensee shall have the right to fill existing orders of any 

merchandise with the Property then in stock. Owner will have the right to verify the 

existence and validity of the existing orders and existing copies of the Work then in stock 

upon reasonable notice to Licensee.  

2. Termination or expiration of this Agreement shall not extinguish any of the User’s or 

Owner’s obligations under this Agreement including, but not limited to, the obligation to 

pay royalties, if any, which by their terms continue after the date of termination or 

expiration. 

 

M. NOTICE. All notice required or permitted under this Contract shall be in writing and 

shall be delivered either in person or deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, 

addressed as follows: 

 For the Owner:    For the User: 

  

 Attention: City Administrator  Attention: Stephanie Kirkey 

 City of Dripping Springs City  P.O. Box 1008  

 P.O. Box 384    Dripping Springs, TX 78620  

 Dripping Springs, TX 78620  863-447-6878  

 512-858-4725      

 

33

Item 5.



City of Dripping Springs   

Copyright/Co-Sponsorship Agreement:  Page 4 of 5 

N. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid or 

unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and enforceable. 

If a court finds that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable, but that by limiting 

such provision it would become valid or enforceable, then such provision shall be deemed to be 

written, construed, and enforced as so limited.  

O. WAIVER OF CONTRACTUAL RIGHT. The failure of any party to enforce any 

provision of this Contract shall not be construed as a waiver of that party's right to subsequently 

enforce and compel strict compliance with every provision of the Contract. 

 

P. APPLICABLE LAW.  The laws of the State of Texas shall govern this Contract.  The 

prevailing party shall have the right to collect from the other party its reasonable costs and 

necessary disbursements and attorneys' fees incurred in enforcing this Agreement. 

 

Q. VENUE.  The venue for any and all legal disputes arising under this Contract shall be Hays 

County, Texas. 

This Agreement and its exhibits contains the entire agreement of the parties and there are no other 

promises or conditions in any other agreement whether oral or written. This Agreement supersedes 

any prior written or oral agreements between the parties.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be executed:  

 

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS    

 

 

By __________________________  By ________________________________ 

 Michelle Fischer, City Administrator    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

34

Item 5.



City of Dripping Springs   

Copyright/Co-Sponsorship Agreement:  Page 5 of 5 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

 
 

 

 

35

Item 5.



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

City of Dripping Springs 

PO Box 384 

511 Mercer Street 

Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

Submitted By: Emily Nelson, Dripping Springs Ranch Park Manager 

DSRP Board 

Meeting Date: 

March 1, 2023 

Agenda Item Wording: Discuss and consider approval Co-Sponsorship Agreement with the Texas Hill 

Country Barrel Racing Association. 

Agenda Item 

Requestor: 

Molly Azopardi and Emily Nelson  

Summary/Background:   THCBRA currently hosts weekly barrel exhibitions on Tuesday nights. The 

barrel exhibitions are a great success weekly. It attracts all ages of racers and 

even citizens come to watch on Tuesday nights. 

The Barrel Races held in 2022 were a success and heavily attended. 

 

Staff 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends a Co-Sponsorship with Texas Hill Country Barrel Racing 

Association. We recommend it being an annual agreement so that we can 

renew annually. Staff recommends that a clause be added that all media for 

co-sponsored events be approved by city staff prior to publication. 

Board 

Recommendation: 

  

Attachments: 

 

Next Steps/Schedule: 

2023 THCBRA Co-Sponsorship Agreement 

 

City Council Contract Execution 

 

36

Item 6.



                             

 

DRIPPING SPRINGS RANCH PARK  
  

  Co-Sponsorship Agreement 
 

 

 

This Dripping Springs Ranch Park Co-Sponsorship Agreement (“Agreement”) is for the 

performance of certain goods and/or services, as specified below: 

 

1. PARTIES:  This Agreement is hereby executed by and between the City of Dripping Springs, 

Texas, and the Texas Hill Country Barrel Racing Association (“Co-Sponsor”). 

 

2. PURPOSE:  This Agreement serves as a statement or exchange of promises between the City 

and Co-Sponsor. It is enacted to provide clear responsibilities and duties for the use of the 

Dripping Springs Ranch (Park) by Co-Sponsor. This Agreement will encourage the 

development of Dripping Springs Ranch Park as all funds generated by the City from this 

agreement will go to the Dripping Springs Ranch Park General Operating Fund.  

 

3. DEFINITIONS: 

 

(a) City: The City of Dripping Springs, a General Law, Type-A municipality located in Hays 

County, Texas. 

 

(b) City Administrator: the chief administrative officer of the City, or the officer’s designee. 

 

(c) City Council: The governing body of the City of Dripping Springs. 

 

(d) Dripping Springs Ranch Park: The premises located at: 1042 Event Center Drive, 

Dripping Springs, TX, 78620. 

 

(e) Person: a human individual, sole proprietorship, partnership, corporation, nonprofit 

corporation, foundation or unincorporated association, or agency. 

 

(f) Texas Hill Country Barrel Racing Association: A Central Texas Non-Profit Barrel Racing 

Association open to all. 

 

4. DESCRIPTION:  Co-Sponsor is hereby engaged to organize and hold the following events: 

2 weekend Barrel Races and weekly exhibitions at DSRP Event Center. 

 

5. SCOPE:  This Agreement applies to Co-Sponsor’s utilization of the Park for the reasons stated 

above, which shall be conducted beginning February 2023.  If for any reason Co-Sponsor’s 

events had to be changed to another date, or other events added, such changes or events added 

would be covered under the fee arrangement of this agreement and the availability of the 

37

Item 6.



City of Dripping Springs  Texas Hill Country Barrell Racing Association 

DSRP Co-Sponsorship Agreement  Page 2 of 5 

rescheduled dates agreed upon by both party’s subject to the DSRP schedule not having 

conflicting events.  

  
6. LOCATION:  This Agreement is fully performable in Dripping Springs, Texas and 

performance shall take place at the Park.  

 

7. OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES:   

 

7.1 The City agrees to allow Co-Sponsor to utilize the DSRP Event Center Arena for the 

purpose of weekend barrel competitions at a discounted rate of $400 per day and 

weekly exhibition nights at the discounted rate of $75 per Tuesday Night.   

 

7.2 THCBRA will provide quarterly payments to DSRP for their practices and Events.   

 

7.3 The City will have audit privileges of all accounting done at events. 

   

7.4 The City confirms that it has obtained insurance through the Texas Municipal League 

Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TML-IRP) that covers its streets and public areas.  Such 

insurance shall be made available to THCBRA as participant in the Event. 

 

7.5 THCBRA agrees to provide all volunteer labor needed to operate/oversee all aspects of 

the Event.    

 

7.6 Supplies: Co-Sponsor agrees to provide all supplies, tools, and equipment necessary 

for performance under this Agreement.  

 

7.7 Utilities: City agrees to provide Co-Sponsor with access to the following utilities for 

the limited purpose of Co-Sponsor’s performance under this Agreement. 

 

(a) Electricity 

 

(b) Water 

 

7.8 Independent Contractor: The Parties agree that Co-Sponsor is an independent 

contractor and is neither an agent nor an employee of the City.  Co-Sponsor is solely 

responsible for directing and controlling Co-Sponsor’s resources and staff in order to 

achieve the goals of this Agreement. 

 

7.9 Safety: 

(a) Co-Sponsor agrees to abide by all state, federal and local rules and regulations. 

  
(b) Co-Sponsor agrees to take all reasonable steps to ensure public safety and 

protection from fire damage. 

 

38

Item 6.



City of Dripping Springs  Texas Hill Country Barrell Racing Association 

DSRP Co-Sponsorship Agreement  Page 3 of 5 

(c) Co-Sponsor shall coordinate the attendance of Emergency Services personnel and 

Fire Department personnel if necessary for the period of time that Co-Sponsor is 

occupying the Park under the terms of this Agreement. 

 

(d) Co-Sponsor shall coordinate the attendance of trained security guards to monitor 

the Park if necessary for the period of time that Co-Sponsor is occupying the Park 

under the terms of this Agreement. 

  
(e) The Co-Sponsor shall require and be responsible for obtaining liability waivers (to 

be provided to the City) to be signed by all arena event participants. Such waiver 

will be provided by the City and is required to be executed by all rodeo participants.  

All executed waivers must be returned to the City within seven (7) calendar days 

after the event.   

 

7.10  Site Maintenance: 

(a) Co-Sponsor agrees not to leave waste or damage the Park. 

 

(b) City shall provide trash cans for the event, for the collection and disposal of solid 

waste generated at the event. 

 

(c) Co-Sponsor shall ensure that all trash is placed in the City-provided trash cans. 

 

Co-Sponsor shall exercise reasonable care and due diligence to avoid harming the 

Park. 

  

8. DURATION:  This Agreement shall be enforceable when signed by both parties and shall be 

deemed terminated January 31, 2023 or as outlined below. 

 

9. TERMINATION:  

 

9.1  This Agreement may be terminated by mutual consent of the parties.  

 

9.2  This Agreement may be terminated by either party without prejudice upon written notice 

to the other party via certified mail, return receipt requested, thirty (30) days prior to 

commencement of the use of the Park.              

 

9.3 Termination shall release each party from all obligations of this Agreement, except as 

specified below. 

 

9.4 Termination of this Agreement, as provided above, shall not prohibit or impair any claim 

by either party based upon any breach of this Agreement. 

 

9.5 The City shall determine if Co-Sponsor shall be relieved of Co-Sponsor’s obligation to 

participate at the Park due to inclement weather. 

 

39

Item 6.



City of Dripping Springs  Texas Hill Country Barrell Racing Association 

DSRP Co-Sponsorship Agreement  Page 4 of 5 

9.6 Force Majeure: In situations in which Co-Sponsor’s participation at the Park is delayed, 

cancelled or suspended due to Acts of God, severe weather, natural disaster, state of public 

emergency, or strike, the terms of this Agreement are waived. 

   

10. INDEMNIFICATION: 

Co-Sponsor agrees to INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS THE CITY AND ITS 

AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS, DAMAGES, 

LOSSES, AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING ATTORNEY’S FEES, ARISING OUT OF OR 

RESULTING FROM THE CITY’S ASSOCIATION WITH CO-SPONSOR UNDER THIS 

AGREEMENT, PROVIDED THAT ANY SUCH CLAIMS, DAMAGE, LOSS, OR 

EXPENSE IS/ARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BODILY INJURY, SICKNESS, DISEASE OR 

DEATH, INJURY TO OR DESTRUCTION OF TANGIBLE PROPERTY, INCLUDING 

THE LOSS OF USE RESULTING THEREFROM, AND IS/ARE CAUSED BY ANY 

NEGLIGENT OR WILLFUL ACT OR OMISSION OF CO-SPONSOR, AND ANYONE 

ACTING UNDER THE DIRECT EMPLOYMENT OF THE CITY. 

 

11. CONTROLLING LAW & VENUE:  Any and all disputes that may arise in relation to this 

Agreement shall be subject to the laws of the State of Texas.  Venue for any disputes arising 

under this Agreement shall be in Hays County, Texas.   

 

12. NOTICES: Any notice provided for by this Agreement and any other notice, demand or 

communication which either party may wish to send to the other, shall be in writing and given 

by (a) hand delivery, (b) express overnight delivery service, or (c) registered or certified United 

States mail, return receipt requested.  Notices shall be addressed to the party for whom such 

notice, demand or communication is intended at such party’s address as set forth below. 

 

City: Co-Sponsor: 

 

Attention: City Administrator Attention: Molly Azopardi  

Post Office Box 384 PO Box 1380 

Dripping Springs, Texas 78620 Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

Phone: (512) 858-4725 Phone: (512) 422-4937 

  

13. HEADINGS:  The headings and titles to the Articles, Paragraphs and Subparagraphs of this 

Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not be deemed a part hereof nor affect 

the construction or interpretation of any provision hereof. 

 

14. ASSIGNMENT:  Neither Party shall assign, sublet, or transfer any interest in this Agreement 

without written consent of the other Party.  Nothing herein shall be construed as giving any 

rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than the City and Co-Sponsor. 

 

15. BINDING ON SUCCESSORS:  This Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure to 

the benefit of, the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

 

16. SEVERABILITY:  Any provisions of this Agreement prohibited or unenforceable by law 

shall be ineffective without affecting any other provision of this Agreement or shall be deemed 

40

Item 6.



City of Dripping Springs  Texas Hill Country Barrell Racing Association 

DSRP Co-Sponsorship Agreement  Page 5 of 5 

to be severed or modified to conform to such law, and the remaining provisions of this 

Agreement shall remain in force, provided that the purpose of this Agreement can be achieved.  

To the full extent, however, that the provisions of such applicable law may be waived, they are 

hereby waived to the end that this Agreement be deemed to be a valid and binding agreement 

enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

 

17. MERGER:  This instrument, and all Attachments affixed hereto, constitutes the entire 

Agreement between the City and Co-Sponsor.  To the extent there are any conflicts between 

this Agreement and the attachments, this Agreement shall govern.  This Agreement supersedes 

all other agreements, oral or written, made with respect to the participation at the Park. 

 

18. MODIFICATIONS:  All amendments or modifications to the Agreement must be in writing.  

No modification shall be effective until approved by both parties. 

 

19. COUNTERPARTS:   This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of 

which shall be deemed to be an original, and all of such counterparts together shall constitute 

but one and the same instrument. 

 

BE IT HEREBY AGREED & APPROVED, for good & valuable consideration, as described 

herein, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged. 

 

 

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS:   CO-SPONSOR: 

 

 

__________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Bill Foulds, Mayor     Molly Azopardi, THCBRA 

 

 

Date: _____________________________  Date: _______________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

41

Item 6.



MANAGER REPORT

JANUARY|FEBRUARY

Treepocalypse

Written by Emily Nelson

.Events were smooth in January.
HCLE was a successful event with a lot of collaboration between HCLE and DSRP Staff. I believe it was the best yet.

Teri Sanders, formerly our Customer Service Specialist, was slected and accepted the offer to become the DSRP
Facility Rental Coordinator.
Footing maintenance was completed and arena users are very pleased with our footing.
Staff mobilized and supported Emergency Management and Hays County in collecting tree debris caused by an ice
event.
DSRP hosted the Arena Polo League for the first ever arena event of its type in our facility. Staff learned a lot and the
event is planning on booking again with us.
DSRP finally received our new ABI Attachments Arena Drag. Staff will attend a Footing Academy in March to learn
best practices with the drag.

 
HIGHLIGHTS

January: 

February: 

42

Item 8.



New Life Church Services
Every Sunday

 
An Evening of Jazz

March 2
 

NADAC Dog Agility
March 3-5

 
DSRP Ranch Series Show

March 11
 
 
 
 

P A G E  0 2

DSRP Footing Academy for Staff
March 13-14

 
THCBRA Barrel Race

March 17-19
 

Wildflower Market
March 25-26

 
Fancy Feathers and 4H Point Show

March 25
 
 
 
 

Coming Soon in March

HIGHLIGHTS AND PREVIEWS

My son and his family live in the Dripping Springs area. He was
trying to figure out how he was going to handle their tree limb
debris. We came to Dripping Springs to help with our trailer. We
hauled numerous loads of limbs from his home to the Ranch
Park location. In my opinion, very well organized by you folks.
Emergency Management plays a big part whatever the need be.
We strive to have a good team here in Colorado County to do
the same when needed. Thank you for what you do!

43

Item 8.


	Top
	Item 1.	DSRP: 01.04.23 DSRP Minutes
	01.04.23 DSRP Minutes_draft

	Item 2.	DSRP: FY24 Budget Planning
	FY 2024 - Budget Calendar - Adopted - 2.7.23

	Item 3.	DSRP: Discuss Expansion Paving and Temporary Arena
	Staff Report - DSRP-2023 - Expansion Paving

	Item 4.	DSRP: Texas Market Guide Banner Co-Sponsorship with Dripping Springs Helping Hands
	Staff Report - DSRP-2023 - TMG - BannerCoSponsorship_Wildflower
	Co-Sponsorship Agreement- TMG- Helping Hands

	Item 5.	DSRP: 2023 Rodeo Ag Booster Co-Sponsorship
	Staff Report - DSRP-2023 - Rodeo - CoSponsorship
	2023 Rodeo Copyright and Sponsorship  Agreement

	Item 6.	DSRP: Texas Hill Country Barrel Racing Association Co-Sponsorship
	Staff Report - DSRP-2023 - THCBRA - CoSponsorship
	THCBRA Co-Sponsorship Agreement 2023

	Item 8.	DSRP: January | February Manager Report
	Jan-Feb Manager Report 2023

	Bottom

